M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
May 14, 2003
4:52 PM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 97, Side A
SFC 03 # 97, Side B
SFC 03 # 98, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 4:52 PM
PRESENT

Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

Al so Attendi ng: JOE SONNEMAN; JOHN BI TNEY, Representative, Al aska
State Honebuil ders Associ ation, RON PECK, President, Al aska Travel
| ndustry Associ ati on; JUDY BRADY, Executive Director, Alaska Gl &
Gas Association; KEVIN R TCH E, Executive Drector, Al aska
Muni ci pal League; JI M CRONE, Menber, Mat-Su Assenbly

Attending via Teleconference: From Anchorage: MARY HUGUES,
Representative, The Alaska C ub; BRAD PHILLIPS, Owner, Phillips
Crui ses & Tours; RICHARD BLOCK, Representative, Christian Science
Commttee on Publications for Alaska;, BROOKS CHANDLER, City
Attorney for None, Dillingham Unal aska, Sol dotna and Sand Poi nt;
CHRI S HLADI CK, City Manager, Gty of Unal aska; From Cordova: DENNY
KAY WEATHERS; KENNY SIMPSON, TIM JOYCE, Mayor, City of Cordova;
NANCY BIRD, Menber, Cordova City Council; GARY GRAHAM Menber,
Cordova City Council; From Fairbanks: MERRI CK PEIRCE, CLIFF
BERGLI N, From Ketchi kan: JACK SHAY, Menber, Ketchikan Gateway
Bor ough Assenbly and | mredi ate Past President, Alaska Mini ci pal
League; M CHAEL SALAZAR, Mayor, Ketchi kan Gateway Borough; ROY
ECKERT, City Mnager, Ketchikan Gateway Borough; LEN LAURANCE,
Touri sm Busi ness Oaner; DOUG WARD, President, Ketchi kan Chanber of
Commer ce; From Kodi ak: LINDA FREED, City Manager, City of Kodi ak;
JAKE JACOBSON; From Mat-Su: MARCI SCHM DT, Small Busi ness Omner;

SFC- 03 (1) 05/ 14/ 03



MARY KVALHEI M Menber, Mat-Su Borough Assenbly; From Petersburg:
JULIE HURSEY; MCHAEL LOPEZ, President, Petersburg Indian
Associ ati on; TOM LAURENT; NANCY BERG Vice President, Petersburg
Chanber of Conmerce and Tourism Busi ness Oaner; From Seward: STEVE
CONN, Representative, Al aska Public Interest Research G oup,; From
Sitka: ROB ALLEN, President, A len Marine Tours and Vice President,
Allen Marine; From Valdez: STAN STEPHENS, Owner, Stan Stephens
Tours; From Wangel|l: ROBERT PRUNELLA, Mayor, City of Wangell
From Unal aska: DEBORAH MACK, City Cerk, Cty of Unal aska; Al MVEE
KNI AZI ONBKI, Assistant City Manager, City of Unalaska; GREGG
HANSON, Smal| Business Omer; From an O fnet Site: R CH SEWELL
Representati ve, |ceberg Seaf oods

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON

SB 220- STATE SALES AND USE TAX

The Comm ttee took public testinony and held the bill in Commttee.
#sb220

SENATE BI LL NO. 220

"An Act relating to a state sales and use tax; relating to
taxes levied by cities and boroughs; providing authority to
t he Departnent of Revenue to enter into the Streanlined Sal es
and Use Tax Agreenent; increasing the notor fuel tax and
repealing the special tax rates on blended fuels; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

Co-chair W1 ken announced that the purpose of the neeting is to
take public testinony on SB 220, which he specified, is a sales and
use bill. He declared that testinony would be limted to two
m nutes and would be conducted on a five-person per community
rotation basis. Additionally, Co-chair WIlken infornmed the public
that testinmony could be faxed to the Conmttee to becone part of
the public record.

MARY HUGHES, Representative, The Alaska Cub, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to request that health club
nmenber shi p dues be excluded fromthe proposed State sal es tax as,
she asserted Alaskans, like residents of other states, are
i ncreasi ngly becom ng unheal thier. She declared that four of every
ten Al askans are overweight. She stated that it would be good
public policy to exclude health facility dues fromtaxation.

SFC- 03 (2) 05/ 14/ 03



BRAD PHILLIPS, Omer, Phillips Cruises & Tours, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to state that during his 57-years in
the tourism business, A aska has fallen fromthird place to thirty-
eighth place in tourismmarketing efforts. He noted that a proposed
anendnment to the bill [copy not provided] would track the | evel of
revenue the State receives fromthe tourismindustry that enploys
approxi mately 30,000 people in the State. He stated that while he
is aware that the State is prohibited from dedicating funds; he
urged the Conmittee to support |anguage that would assist in
determ ning the revenue generated fromtourismactivities with the
goal of acquiring additional State tourism marketing funds.

RI CHARD BLOCK, Representative, Christian Science Comrittee on
Publications for Alaska, testified via teleconference from
Anchorage to state that while the Christian Science Commttee does
not have a position on the sales tax issue; he requested that the
Christian Science practitioners be included in an anendnent that
woul d exenpt health care services from State taxation, as he
declared, Christian Science practitioners provide a healing
service. He requested that these practitioners be included in this
exenption even though they are not licensed |ike other nedical
services. He nentioned that exenptions are provided in the bill for
501-C3 entities such as religious organi zations; however, he noted
that Christian Science Practitioners do not qualify under that
exenption even though they provide healing and religious activity.

BROOKS CHANDLER, City Attorney for Nome, Dillingham Unal aska,
Soldotna and Sand Point, testified via teleconference from
Anchorage to state that the cities he represents have | ocal sales
taxes and woul d be affected by this |legislation. He specified that
consideration of a State sales tax should be discussed at |ength
rat her than bei ng addressed quickly as, he asserted, this piece of
| egi sl ation has been. He suggested that a special session be
conducted in order to carefully consider the inpact of the bill. He
voiced that in his experience the fewer sales tax exenptions and
speci al situations “the better” as each exenption raises
adm ni strative expenses. He stated that the preference would be to
have a lower tax rate with few exenptions. He shared that current
| anguage in the bill that could be problematic would include: the
resale exenption, as it would be difficult to enforce; the bl anket
notor fuel tax exenption as it would affect nunicipalities that
currently inpose notor fuel taxes; and the m ning and manufacturing
exenption as it would raise “conplicated legal issues in its
enf orcenent.”

CHRIS HLADICK, Gty Manager, City of Unalaska, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that the Cty would be negatively

SFC- 03 (3) 05/ 14/ 03



af fected by the proposed notor tax exenption in the bill. He stated

that the City could |lose approximately three mllion dollars in
| ocal marine fuel revenues were this exenption inposed. He stated
that while other provisions in the bill are cause for concern, the

notor fuel tax exenption would do the nost danmage to Gty revenues.

Co-Chair G een asked that comunities that inpose |ocal notor fuel
taxes review | anguage in Version “D" on page 13, line 23 in the
commttee substitute to determ ne whether it addresses concern

Thi s | anguage reads as foll ows:

Sec. 27. AS 43.40.010 is anmended by adding a new subsection to
read:

(m An anount equal to the revenue obtained from six
cents of the tax collected under (a) and (b) of this section,
excl udi ng the anounts collected under (a)(1) — (4) and (b)(1)
— (4) of this section, shall be separately accounted for in
the special highway fuel tax account under AS 43.40.010(g).
The annual estinated balance of the anount separately
accounted for may be appropriated by the legislature to the
Departnent of Community and Economc Devel opnent for
distribution to nunicipalities according to AS 29.60. 110.

Co-Chair WIlken clarified that, for purposes of discussion, SB220,
Version 23-LS1128\D i s being considered as the working docunent.

DENNY KAY WEATHERS testified via tel econference from Cordova in
opposition to the tax. She stated that a State sales tax issue
should be determned by a vote of the people rather than the
Legi slature “shoving it through.”

KENNY SIMPSON testified via teleconference from Cordova in
opposition to the proposed tax. He echoed Ms. Wathers’ coments
that the issue should be decided by a vote of the people rather
than the issue being “railroaded” through. He declared that the tax
would not solve the State’'s fiscal problens, and he voiced
opposition to exenptions for special interest groups.

Senator Tayl or asked whether the City of Cordova has a sal es tax.
Ms. Weat hers responded that it does.

TIM JOYCE, Mayor, City of Cordova, testified via tel econference
from Cordova to announce that the City is on record in opposition
to a State sales tax. He explained that due to its isolation, the
cost of living in Cordova is high and a State sales tax, in
addition to the | ocal six-percent sales tax, would drive the cost
of living higher. He noted that a total sales tax cap of eight-

SFC- 03 (4) 05/ 14/ 03



percent would curtail the city’'s revenue and be harnful to the
operation of city services. He shared that in order to conpensate
for lost sales tax revenue, the Cty would be required to increase
the property tax of 13.5 mls, thereby placing a burden on property
owners. He summarized that the eight-percent tax cap would stifle
economc activity and would limt the Cty' s ability to expand
services. He noted that the Gty s additional six-percent tax on
rental vehicles and tenporary | odging would al so be affected.

Senat or Bunde asked M. Joyce for suggestions as to how to address
the State’s fiscal gap were a State sal es tax not an option.

M. Joyce suggested that a tourismhead tax or an incone tax m ght
be “nore pal atable.”

Senat or Tayl or asked for verification that a one-percent Cty sales
tax loss would require a 4.5 mls property tax increase to
conpensate for estimated | ost revenue of $400, 000.

M. Joyce affirmed. He stated that the Gty s one m!| property tax
equates to approximately $100,000. He noted that the Gty has a
relatively small property tax base because nunerous properties in
Cordova are tax-exenpt because they are owned by the forest
service, the State, or by other tax-exenpt organizations.

NANCY Bl RD, Menber , Cordova City Council, testified via
tel econference from Cordova to assert that the Gty has worked hard
to diversify its tax base in light of such things as declining
revenue fromthe rawfish tax. She stated that a State sal es tax
woul d “dramatically affect” the community. She commented that an
i ncone tax mght be a revenue generating option.

GARY GRAHAM Menber, Cordova Gty Council, testified via
tel econference from Cordova to remnd State citizens that noney is
available in “the Rainy Day” account. He urged the Conmttee to not
inpose a State sales tax, as it would negatively affect people in
rural areas of the State.

MERRI CK PEIRCE testified via teleconference from Fairbanks in
opposition to a State sales tax. He quoted from a recent Wall
Street Journal study that concluded that the econom es of states
that raise incone by increasing taxes fare worse than states that
| ower taxes. He voiced that the consequences of this tax on the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough, which has “a stagnant popul ation” and
the highest property mls tax in the State, has him “very, very
worried.”

CLIFF BERGLIN testified via teleconference from Fairbanks and

SFC- 03 (5) 05/ 14/ 03



stated that this bill is “one of the cruelest and nost brutal
bills” that he has ever read. He stated that the estimted $300
mllion that woul d be generated by this tax and proposed user fees
would not adequately inpact the State’'s fiscal dilemma. He
continued that inplenmentation of the State tax would require an
unknown quantity of individuals to be hired to admnister the
program He voiced discontentnent “that retired bureaucrats and
politicians who do not live in” the State are being supported by
State funds. Additionally, he opined that the State subsidizes the
operations of three oil conpanies, and he declared that those three
conpanies are reported in the Wall Street Journal to have sone of
t he highest profits in the industry.

Senator Bunde clarified that the State’'s retired enployees and
el ected officials are funded by retirenment prograns rather than by
general funds. Additionally, he comrented that 70-percent of
current State expenses are paid by revenues generated fromthe oi

i ndustry.

JACK SHAY, Menber, Ketchi kan Gat eway Borough Assenbly and | nmedi at e
Past Presi dent, Al aska  Muni ci pal League, testified via
t el econference from Ket chi kan to announce that the A aska Mini ci pa
League opposes this legislation. He stated that were the
| egi slation to be adopted, the organi zati on woul d request that the
ei ght - percent sales tax cap, as well as the phase-in provision, be
mai nt ai ned. He further requested that provisions be included to
exenpt municipalities that currently have a sales tax from the
State tax for a two-year transition period. Furthernore, he urged
that the bill be expanded to include provisions allow ng
municipalities to levy excise taxes. He voiced support for
municipalities to be granted the authority to collect the tax and
remt to the State its portion of the tax.

M. Shay opined that the State could generate additional revenues
by incorporating a visitor head tax, approving such things as
el ectronic gamng, selling State land, and reinstating the
education and enpl oynent taxes.

MCHAEL SALAZAR, Mayor, Ketchi kan Gateway Borough, testified via
tel econference from Ketchi kan to voice opposition to a State sal es
tax. He stated that other revenue sources such as |egalized
ganbling, State land sales, and a State lottery should first be
expl or ed.

Senator Tayl or asked the current property tax ml| rate and sal es

tax levied in Ketchikan. Additionally he asked how one percent of
sales tax would equate to the m| rate.

SFC- 03 (6) 05/ 14/ 03



M. Sal azar responded that Ketchi kan has a property tax of 6.4 mls
and a 5.5 percent sales tax. He stated that the sales tax verses
ml| rate information would be forthcom ng.

ROY ECKERT, Gty Manager, Ketchi kan Gateway Borough, testified via
tel econference from Ketchikan to state that this is one of the
“worst bills” he has encountered in his professional experience and
that other states that have considered simlar |egislation “have

opted to back out.” He stated that the “bill is being introduced
too fast and if inplemented would be an economic nightmare.” He
informed that |anguage in the bill indicates that the tax woul d be

coll ected through “a joint procurenent process” with a privately
owned conpany; however, he inforned that other states using this
nmet hod have experienced difficulties in collection and auditing
nmeasures. As an alternative to the State hiring personnel and
i npl enenting software prograns to collect and audit the tax, he
urged the Commttee to devel op a cooperative agreenent between the
State and | ocal communities where staff is already in place, as he
infornmed that studies conducted in other states have determ ned
that local cities and counties that collect sales and use taxes are
nore efficient and have a high collection rate.

Co-chair WIlken noted, for clarification, that SB 220 and HB 293
are identical bills.

LEN LAURANCE, Tourism Business Oaner, testified via tel econference
from Ket chi kan and stated that bookings in the tourismindustry are
continuing to decline. He stated that in order to grow this
industry and create nore jobs in the State, the State nust increase
mar keti ng funds; therefore, he urged the Conmittee to anend this
bill to dedicate those taxes garnered fromtourismindustries to
fund a long-term marketing program He stated that this revenue,
collected via “the broad-based tax” on the industry, “would be the
ultimate public-private partnership.”

DOUG WARD, President, Ketchikan Chanber of Conmerce, testified via
t el econference from Ketchi kan to suggest that the bill should be
nodified to prevent negative inpacts on regions, particularly those
i n Sout heast Al aska and those communities that currently have | oca
sal es taxes. He avowed that conmunities facing an ei ght-percent tax
conprised of a local five-percent tax and a three-percent State tax
woul d experience an increase in “retail |eakage,” and out-of-state
pur chases.

SFC 03 # 97, Side B 05:40 PM

SFC- 03 (7) 05/ 14/ 03



M. Ward continued that nodifications to Sec. 43.44.155 on page 18,
line 25 could assist in mtigating retail |eakage. This section
currently reads as foll ows.

Sec. 43.44.155. Exenption for notor vehicles, watercraft,
aircraft, and nobile hones. The sales price or purchase price
of a nmotor vehicle, watercraft, aircraft, or nobile hone in
excess of $5,000 is exenpt fromthe sales tax and use tax. For
purpose of this section, “notor vehicle” has the meani ng given
in AS 28.40. 100.

M. Ward suggested that this section be nodified to provide a
general exenption for services and equi pnent sales, service, and
rentals in excess of $5,000. He stated that this exenption would
al | ow Al askan businesses to remain conpetitive. He stated that the
Ket chi kan and Wangel |l shipyards are exanpl es of businesses that
woul d benefit fromthis nodification.

JOE SONNEMAN testified in Juneau and infornmed the Commttee of his
prof essi onal background i ncluding a Public Finance PhD as well as
budget and managenent experience. He opined that the sal es taxes,
the $100 Enpl oynment tax, and the elimnation of the Permanent Fund
D vidend check “are a really excellent way to soak the poor.” He
continued that were a sales tax inposed, “the fair thing” to do
woul d be to provide exenptions for such things as nedi cal expenses,
food, and honme heating oil. In contrast, he stressed that an incone
tax is a much better way to tax peopl e because those who earn nore,
pay nore.

M. Sonneman rem nded that, during the Longevity Bonus Program
elimnation bill hearings, approximately 90-percent of the
respondents who suggested an alternative solution reconmended t hat
an inconme tax be considered.

Senator Taylor asked the testifier how he would “characteri ze the
system that taxed based upon the ability to pay and rewarded based
upon the need.”

M. Sonneman stated that while he has not addressed the reward
system he voiced support for a progressive incone tax as its rate
structure is based on earnings. However, he stressed that care nust
be given to not provide “a disincentive to work affect.”

JOHN BI TNEY, Representative, Al aska State Honebuil ders Associ ation
informed the Committee that the organi zation represents 900 snal |
busi nesses. He stated that the organi zati on comends the Comm ttee
for providing a “sale of real property” exenption in the bill,
however, he voiced that the organization urges the Cormittee to

SFC- 03 (8) 05/ 14/ 03



additionally consider an exenption for building materials simlar
to the aforenentioned exenption for notor vehicles, watercraft,
aircraft, and nobile homes. He conmunicated the concern that
acquisition limts for the tax-exenpt first-tine honebuyer program
are being approached across the State, and he attested that the
inmposition of a State sales tax would cause the purchase of
building materials to increase hone purchase prices, and thereby
exceed the programis limts in certain areas of the State, and
therefore, he stated that the effect of the tax on building
materials would be “to disqualify that program from being
avai lable.” He noted that this | oan program generates significant
| oan volume for the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC);
however, he stressed that current nmarket conditions already have a
negative affect on the availability of the program

RON PECK, President, Alaska Travel Industry Association (ATIA),
testified in Juneau and spoke in support of the bill as, he
attested, the 1,123 busi nesses represented by ATIA understand and
recognize the need for a sales tax. He stated that while the
majority of ATIA businesses are small entities with 15 or |ess
enpl oyees, the industry directly and indirectly contributes 30, 000
enpl oynent opportunities in the State and approxinmately $1.8
billion to the State’s econony. He stated that ATIA is instrunental
in marketing the State as a tourism destination, and that while
ATI A recogni zes the fiscal gap challenges the State faces and the
need for a state sales tax; he stated that the tourismindustry
additionally faces chal |l enges and booki ng declines as the result of
t he econony and other factors. He urged the Commttee to anend this
| egislation to designate sales tax revenues resulting fromtourism
related industries to bolster the State’'s marketing efforts to
ensure that the industry remains viable. He provided the Commttee
with a copy of the proposed anmendnent [copy on file].

JUDY BRADY, Executive Director, Alaska Ol & Gas Association,
testified in Juneau and inforned the Commttee that the Association
is not taking a position regarding the sales and use tax issue,
however, she informed that, were the |egislation adopted, the
Associ ation has transitional concerns including current |anguage
drafting flaws pertaining to the sale for resale exenption as well
as a concern that the oil and gas industry is “not being double and
triple taxed” in ways that would result is “a disincentive for
future investnent.” She nentioned that the Association has
submtted witten testinony regarding their concerns [copy on
file].

Co-chair Wlken reiterated, for clarification, that SB 220 and HB
293 are simlar bills.

SFC- 03 (9) 05/ 14/ 03



KEVIN RI TCH E, Executive Director, Al aska Muinicipal League (AM),
testified in Juneau and voiced support for earlier testinony
presented by Jack Shay on behalf of AM.. Additionally, he noted
that the proposed tax exenption for notor and marine fuel would
result in a substantial |oss of revenue for nunmerous comrunities
that currently |levy taxes on these products. He stressed that this
is a concern as the proposed revenue sharing plan does not include
mari ne fuel tax revenues and is based on mles of road rather than
the actual tax loss to nunicipalities. He stated that this
significant issue nmust be further addressed.

Co-Chair WI ken commented that M. Ritchie and AML have supplied
“consi derabl e” insight on this legislation. He asked M. Rtchie to
hi ghl i ght maj or areas of concern.

M. Ritchie responded that in addition to the fuel tax exenption,
anot her concern is that “the only cap” specified in this bill is
one that exenpts any anount in excess of $5,000 on the sales or
purchase price of a notor vehicle, watercraft, or aircraft as he
shared that nunicipalities place broad caps on other services as
wel | . Furthernore, he pointed out that |anguage exenpting sal es by
| ocal governnents and the State is vague and should be further
defined to clarify whether such things as bus and pool passes woul d
be exenpt.

Senator Taylor stated that he “was shocked” and didn't realize that
the State/nunicipal revenue sharing plan that would be funded by
the gas tax woul d be all ocated based on the anmobunt of road m | es.

M. Ritchie confirnmed that the |anguage reads that the revenue
sharing programwould provide “so nuch per mle.”

Co-Chair WI ken asked for confirmation that this is the proposed
for mul a.

M. Ritchie confirnmed.

Senat or Tayl or surm sed therefore that communities in the Rail belt
areas of the State with “lots of mles” would benefit nore than
those in Sout heast Al aska served by the Al aska Marine Ferry System

M. Ritchie responded yes, it is based on road mles.

Senat or Bunde asked whet her the Al aska Municipal League, with its
| ong-terminvol venrent with munici pal revenue sharing prograns, has
di scussed the possibility that the State’ s involvenent in those
progranms m ght be negatively affected were the State’s fiscal gap
not addressed.

SFC- 03 (10) 05/ 14/ 03



M. Ritchie stated that AML is aware of the very serious
ram fications of the State’s budgetary issues and its subsequent
affect “on everybody in the State, not just the State or
muni cipalities.”

Senat or Bunde asserted therefore, that “a little | oss here” would
be preferred to “a nmuch larger loss later.”

Senat or Tayl or rem nded “col | eagues, that nunicipal assistance and
revenue sharing was a vehicle designed by the legislature of the
State of Al aska so that there would be sone sharing of the Railbelt
weal th that was going to occur to that geographic area which was
going to get all the jobs, all the new hones, all the
infrastructure, and all the population to tax and to have that
benefit for them” as the result of the construction of the Trans
Al aska Pipeline and North Slope oil devel opnents.

Senator Tayl or declared that now that “the wealth” fromthe North
Slope is in decline and the State is experiencing fiscal problens,
the nunicipal assistance and revenue sharing prograns are in
jeopardy. He asserted that, “it is ironic” that those communities
that benefited from the North Slope developnent are the ones
wi t hout self-taxing systens. He declared that their support for the
elimnation of the revenue sharing program indicates that they
“have very little synpathies” for those communities that have had
to i npose taxes.

LINDA FREED, City Manager, Cty of Kodiak, testified via
tel econference from Kodi ak in opposition to a State sales tax. She
asserted that nunmerous nunicipalities around the State have
fashioned city operations around |ocal sale and property tax
revenues. She recounted that Kodiak’s six-percent sales tax
accounts for 70-percent of the City's revenue, and that a State
inposed tax would be contrary to the “hone-ruled chartered
muni ci pality” status whereby the citizens of the community vote on
the level of local taxes. She stated that elimnating the |oca

control of taxation “is inappropriate.” She inforned that, were a
State tax inposed, the Gty could | ose 40-percent of its sales tax

i ncome because “sales will go el sewhere.” She attested that this
| oss would negatively affect the Cty's ability to construct and
mai ntai n such things as harbors and roads, |ibraries, nuseuns, |aw

enforcenment and other nunicipally supported operations. Wre the
tax inmposed, she urged the Commttee to contract with those |ocal
governnent entities that have a sales tax collection structure in
place to adm nister the program as it would be nore efficient and
profitable.

SFC- 03 (11) 05/ 14/ 03



JAKE JACOBSON testified via teleconference from Kodiak to voice
that “the arguments against the sales tax seemhollow.” He stated
that the proposed three-percent tax “is insignificant” and “is an
equitable and fair tax.” He voiced that the argunent that an eight-
percent tax woul d i ncrease out-of-town purchases is groundl ess as
it could be argued that the existing six-percent |ocal sales tax
already attributes to that affect. He suggested that the Commttee
i npose an eight-percent State sales tax with five percent being
designated for communities and three percent being designated for
the State.

Senat or Tayl or asked the testifier the |level of the property m|l
rate in Kodi ak.

Ms. Freed responded that Kodi ak has a six-percent |ocal sales tax
with an 11.25 m| property tax.

Senat or Tayl or asked how one-percent of sales tax equates to the
ml rate.

Ms. Freed responded that one percent of the |ocal sales tax equates
to approximately four mls.

Senator Taylor calculated therefore that the ml| rate nust be
increased to four mls to conpensate for each one-percent reduction
in the | ocal sales tax.

M. Jacobson interjected that were the Cty's local tax |owered
fromthe current six-percent to five-percent, as he suggested in
his testinony, that the City could absorb the reduction by
downsi zing |local governnent, as he opined there is “sone
guestionable City spending” occurring. He attested that “the
general theme in Alaska is to cut back,” and that Gty operations
could be funded by its significant savings account and could
function adequately wth a five-percent sales tax |evy.

Co-Chair WI ken asked for confirmation that a four mls property
tax woul d equate to the revenue generated froma one percent sales
t ax.

Ms. Freer concurred that this is correct for the property tax
|l evied inside City limts.

Co-chair WI ken concluded therefore, that the community woul d be
required to increase the local ml| rate by 24-ml|s were the current
| ocal sales tax elim nated.

Ms. Freed concurred, citing the two-m| Gty rate and a 9.25 mls

SFC- 03 (12) 05/ 14/ 03



Borough rate. She shared that the Cty sales tax revenues are
dedi cated for Gty service operations and that the Borough uses its
property tax revenues to fund schools.

M. Jacobson informed the Commttee that he is a nenber of a group
that is pronoting an initiative that would place a limt on the ml
rate Statew de. However, he noted that the initiative would grant
| ocal governments the authority to levy higher ml rates, if
desired.

MARCI SCHM DT, Smal |l Business Owmer, testified via tel econference
fromMat-Su to voice that a State sal es tax “woul d devastate” smal
business in the State. Instead, she urged the Commttee to support
HB 321 that proposes to inplenent a State incone tax.

MARY KVALHEIM Menber, WMat-Su Borough Assenbly, testified via
tel econference from Mat-Su to voice that she personally prefers a
State inconme tax as opposed to a State sales tax as it would be
paid by all residents, including non-residents who “contribute
nothing to the State,” but who benefit from State servi ces.

Ms. Kval heimfurther noted that the conmittee substitute specifies
t hat boroughs woul d be responsible for collecting the State tax on
city services such as bus and pool passes, and then remt that tax
to the State. She voiced concern regarding the costs and staffing
inmpacts that a tax on City services would incur. She urged the
Commttee to fully evaluate this legislation during the interim
break between |egislative sessions or via a special session rather
than addressing it in a short tineline.

Senat or Bunde voiced that an incone tax would inpact small business
operators because the |anguage currently being considered would
have approxi mately “20-percent of Al askans payi ng approxi mately 80-
percent of the tax.”

JI M CRONE, Menber, Mat-Su Assenbly, testified in Juneau and shared
the Al aska Municipal League position that |ocal governnments are
“the domain of sales taxes.” He stated that a State sales tax would
have “severe inpacts” on comrunities that currently inpose |oca
sal es taxes and mght result in an increase in property taxes. He
continued that the legislature has failed to address the issue of
school funding shortfalls, which is “the nost pressing concern” of
| ocal governnents. He stated that were a State tax inposed, a
vehicle to funnel adequate funding to schools should be
i npl enented. In addition, he echoed Ms. Kval heim s concern that
this bill should provide a clear definition of what would qualify
for munici pal service exenptions.

SFC- 03 (13) 05/ 14/ 03



M. Crowe furthered, that as a small business owner, he is “under
assault” with this Legislature as separate proposed |egislation
woul d i ncrease business |license fees and gas taxes and inpose a
studded tire tax in addition to the current |evel of corporate
taxes. He stated that in addition to the aforenentioned I[imt on
t he $5, 000 purchase price of notor vehicles, watercraft, aircraft,
and notor honmes, he stated that “a cap” should be instilled on
pr of essi onal servi ces.

Senat or Bunde asked the testifier to suggest alternatives to this
| egi sl ati on.

M. Crowe suggested that such things as a school tax on
i ndi vidual s’ first paycheck and avenues to generate revenue from
non-resi dents be considered. He urged that this bill not be rushed
t hrough the | egislative process.

Senat or Bunde communi cated that 90-percent of the wages in the
State are earned by Al askans. He continued that the average sal ary
earned by the ten percent who are non-residents is $13,000 a year,
whi ch he decl ared neans that for every non-resident North Sl ope oi
wor ker there is another non-resident enployed at a m ni mum wage
job. He pointed out that the State woul d not garner nuch revenue
fromthat average wage.

M. Crow chal |l enged the average sal ary earned by non-residents by
stating that non-residents would not consider it worthwhile to
travel to and from the State on a regular basis were this the
anount of noney being earned. He shared that while working on the
North Sl ope, he did not encounter many Al askan resident workers
al t hough enpl oyers “claimthey do local hire.”

Senator Bunde comented that the ten-percent non-resident
calculation is a Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent
statistic.

JULIE HURSEY testified via tel econference from Petersburg to voice
that she is “very opposed” to this legislation. She expl ai ned that
the legislation is unfair in that it specifically exenpts the
crui se ship business fromthe tax while requiring her small charter
boat business to pay the State tax in addition to the |ocal tax.
She stated that the level of taxes that her charter boat business
woul d be required to collect for a weeklong charter equates to the
di scounted price that a | arge capacity cruise ship could charge for
a weeklong trip. She suggested that a five-dollar head tax woul d be
a preferred alternative to raise funds, as it is unfair that |oca
busi nesses would be required to carry this burden that would
contribute to nmaking themless conpetitive with outside entities.

SFC- 03 (14) 05/ 14/ 03



She stated that travelers are price shopping and that this tax, in
addition to the downturn in travelers resulting fromthe Septenber
2001 terrorist attack on the nation, the econony, and the Sudden
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) woul d aggravate the situation.
She stated that it will take tinme for Alaska’s tourismindustry to
rebound, and she voiced concern regarding the “burden this sales
tax woul d place..on her small Al askan business.” She voiced that an
income tax would be a preferred alternative, as she stated this
alternative “would cost her noney but not close her business.” She
stated that the State should recognize the inportance of |oca
touri sm busi nesses and support the industry just as, she attested,

the State does for the oil industry. Furthernmore, she avowed that a
State sales tax would be harnful to small communities that levy a
sales tax. She urged the Committee to hold this bill to better

gauge its effect on small businesses and | ocal comunities.

M CHAEL LOPEZ, President, Petersburg Indian Association, testified
via tel econference from Petersburg in opposition to the sales tax
| egi sl ati on.

TOM LAURENT testified via tel econference from Petersburg to voice
strong opposition to the proposed sal es tax because of the negative
inpact on the Gty of Petersburg. He stated that were the current
six-percent City sales tax |owered one percent, the anount of
revenue | ost would equate to the salaries of approximately 25, or
half of the total, City enployees. He stated that this | oss would
severely inpact city services and | ocal schools, residents’ quality
of life, and would result in an increase in out-of-town purchases.
He stated that the tax is regressive, and he voiced support for an
income tax, as it would garner revenue from residents and non-
residents who use State resources but do not contribute to the
St ate.

NANCY BERG Vice President, Petersburg Chanber of Comrerce and
Tourism Business Ower, testified via teleconference from
Petersburg in opposition to the tax. She opined that the State tax
woul d affect small communities nore than |arger ones, as it would
result in a significant |oss of jobs and services. Furthernore, she
asserted that a |oss of jobs would negatively affect communities
because it would result in a |oss of volunteer resources for such
things as the fire departnment. She stressed that small businesses
struggle to conpete with | arge conpani es and busi nesses providi ng
Internet sales that m ght not be required to pay a State tax. She
voi ced support “for a fair and graduated incone tax.”

Senat or Tayl or understood that a four or five property tax ml

i ncrease would be required for each sales tax percentage |oss that
Pet er sburg woul d i ncur

SFC- 03 (15) 05/ 14/ 03



M. Laurent stated that each one-percent |ocal sales tax | oss would
require a four to five ml property tax increase. In addition, he
expressed that a State incone tax would qualify as a federal incone
tax deduction whereas as a State sales tax would not.

STEVE CONN, Representative, Al aska Public Interest Research G oup,
testified via teleconference from Seward and stated that this
“l arge consumer group vigorously opposes” this legislation as it
represents an attack on Alaska’s working people and pits “big
cities against the small cities that have actually been in the
forefront for fiscal planning and | ocal control, the rich against
the poor.” He noted that this legislation “is pocked with special
i nterest exenptions.” He urged the Conmttee “to do the right thing
and hold this bill.”

SFC 03 # 98, Side A 06:28 PM

ROB ALLEN, President, Allen Marine Tours and Vice-President of
Allen Marine, testified via tel econference fromSitka and voi ced an
understanding of the State’s need to collect new revenues to
address the State’'s fiscal gap. He asserted that a healthy visitor
i ndustry, particularly independent travel ers who spend nore noney
per capita than other type of travelers, would substantially
contribute tax revenue were the State sal es tax adopted. Therefore,
he urged the Legislature “to make a public commtnent to increase
t he anmount of noney the State spends on nmarketing,” as he expressed
that “the visitor industry is not healthy.”

M. Allen specified that the downturn in the nation’s econony,
conbined with international terrorismactivities, have resulted in
unf oreseen negative inpacts on tourism This downturn, he attested,
has forced the State’'s visitor industry to renege on previous
years’ commtnments that the industry could support its own
mar keti ng expenses, as he avowed that the industry could only
rebound were an aggressive and expensive narketing canpaign
under t aken.

M. Allen urged the Commttee to “be strong” to the nunerous groups
seeking tax exenptions and resist the urge to provide those
exenptions. Furthernore, he urged the Commttee to change the
Al aska Permanent Dividend Fund into an endownent fund, and consi der
instituting a progressive incone tax as opposed to a State sales
t ax.

STAN STEPHENS, Owner, Stan Stephens Tours, testified via

SFC- 03 (16) 05/ 14/ 03



tel econference from Valdez in support of a State sales tax to
assist in the effort to diversify the state’s econony. He stated
that a tax of this nature is not uncommobn as he pays user taxes
wherever he travels. Additionally, he voiced support for amendi ng
the bill to specify that the revenue generated from tourism
activities be designated to support “a viable tourism marketing
program” He remnded the Commttee that previously the State
supported a strong narketing program with trenmendous success;
however, he attested that as the State’'s marketing efforts have
dwi ndl ed, visitors have been successfully wooed to other
destinations that have aggressive marketing prograns. He stated
that the downturn in tourism has resulted in nany business
failures; however, he avowed that the State’'s support of a
mar keti ng program woul d i ncrease visitor traffic and would have a
positive inpact on the State’s econony.

ROBERT  PRUNELLA, Mayor , Cty of Wangell, testified via
tel econference fromWangell in opposition to a State sales tax. He
observed that the opponents of the tax reside in communities
wi thout Jlocal taxes, and he remarked therefore, that the
inplications of a tax do not affect them He continued that
Wangell, with a seven percent |ocal tax, has the highest tax in
the State and that the | ocal property tax nust be raised 2.5 mls
for each percent of sales tax |ost.

DEBORAH MACK, City Cerk, Cty of Unalaska, testified from an
offnet site in Unalaska to voice concern of the difficulty she
foresees for the State in its efforts to collect and adm nister a
sales tax programin the State’s huge geographic area. She noted
that the State would be forced to ask | ocal governnents to assi st
in this endeavor. She urged the Conmttee to: 1) classify notor
fuel tax as a specific tax and allow | ocal communities to continue
to levy a local tax on notor fuel; 2) add a section to the bil
specifying that the State could contract with | ocal governnments to
collect, enforce, and admnister the tax on behalf of the State; 3)
renmove the user tax portion of the bill as it would be difficult to
enforce; and 4) appoint a task force, conprised of experienced
menbers to work with the Departnent of Revenue to devel op policies
and procedures.

Al MEE KNI AZI ONBKI, Assistant Cty Mnager, City of Unal aska,
testified froman offnet site in Unalaska on behalf of the Cty.
She reiterated that the exenption on marine fuel would have a
serious negative effect on the City's revenue. She shared that the
City collected three mllion dollars fromthe sale of 71 mllion
gallons of marine fuel in the year 2002. She urged that the bill be
anended to allow nunicipalities to levy a tax on marine fuel

Furthernore, she voiced the City's concern that were the State to

SFC- 03 (17) 05/ 14/ 03



adm nister and collect sales taxes, a delay mght result in the
State remtting the City' s share of sales taxes back to the City.
She stated that this would severely inpact the Cty's cash flow.
She noted that while this issue is not directly addressed in the

bill, she stated that this issue could be negated were the | ocal
government allowed to collect the tax. She voiced support of
| anguage in Section 35 of the bill that specifies that a

“Streantined Sal es and Use Tax Agreenent” be authorized that woul d
allow the State to coordinate tax collection with other states for
nati onal and i nternati onal busi nesses.

RICH SEWELL, Representative, |ceberg Seafood, testified from an
offnet site to ask that the Conmttee consider “how and if” the
whol esal e and/ or export business industry would be addressed in
this bill, particularly “given the critical state of the seafood
i ndustry.”

GREGG HANSON, Sral | Business Owner, testified froman offnet site
in Unal aska, to voice that, in a simlar fashion to the Ketchikan
Gat eway Borough, nunerous busi nesses in Unal aska provide service to
the comercial fishing industry and that this |egislation would
i ncur an uneven playing field in that it would allow the state of
Washi ngton, which is Al askan businesses’ biggest conpetitor, an
advant age because Washi ngton exenpts sales of watercraft and their
conponents from the Washington state tax. He avowed that this
| egi sl ati on woul d provide sufficient incentive “to drive business
out of the State,” and that an incone tax would be the preferred
alternative to solving the State’s fiscal gap.

There being no further testifiers, Co-Chair WIken announced t hat
public testinony on SB 220 is cl osed.

The bill was HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 06:48 PM

SFC- 03 (18) 05/ 14/ 03



